
Kent County Board of Zoning Appeals 
Department of Planning, Housing, and Zoning  

400 High Street, Suite 130 
Chestertown, MD 21620 

410-778-7423 (voice/relay)  
 

 

County Commissioners Hearing Room 

MEETING TO BE HELD VIRTUALLY via CONFERENCE CALL 

 

COVID-19 Special Announcement Regarding Meeting Attendance 

 

In response to the State of Emergency due to COVID-19, individuals must refrain from attending meetings. In lieu of public appearance, 

this meeting is being held virtually, via teleconference.  Members of the public may listen to the meeting either online at 

https://www.kentcounty.com/commissioners/meeting-live-video, OR via the audio-only phone number and conference identification 

number listed below. The way for members of the public to provide verbal comments during the meeting is via the audio-only phone 

number. 

 

Public participation and audio-only call-in number: 

 

1. Dial 1-872-239-8359 

2. Enter Conference ID:  176 731 247# 

 

Members of the public are asked to mute their phones/devices, until the Board Chair opens the floor for comment. Please note that 

if you are listening to the online livestream while waiting to call in to participate, there is an approximately 45-second delay. In order 

to avoid audio feedback issues, please mute the livestream before calling in. 

 

AGENDA 
 

Monday, March 15, 2021 

7:00 p.m. 

 
MINUTES 

 

October 19, 2020 

 

 

APPLICATIONS FOR REVIEW: 

 

21-01 Roseland, Inc. – Special Exception – Expansion of existing sand and gravel pit 

Bradford Johnson Road – First Election District – Zoned Agricultural Zoning District “AZD”………...BOA 

Decision 

 

  
APPLICANT OR REPRESENTATIVE MUST BE PRESENT 

 
APPLICANTS ARRIVING MORE THAN 10 MINUTES AFTER THE SCHEDULED HEARING WILL NOT BE HEARD 

AND WILL BE RESCHEDULED AT THE APPLICANT’S EXPENSE. 

  
Meetings are conducted in Open Session unless otherwise indicated.  All or part of the Board of Appeals meetings can be held in closed session under the authority of the 

MD Open Meetings Law by vote of the members.  Breaks are at the call of the Chairman.  Meetings are subject to audio and video recordings. 

 

Projects will not be reviewed prior to their scheduled time.  All applications will be given the time necessary to assure full public participation and a fair and complete 

review of all projects.  Agenda items are subject to change due to cancellations.  

  

Other business without assigned times may be discussed during the meeting.   



Page 1 of 1 

MINUTES 

Meeting: Kent County Board of Zoning Appeals 

Date: October 19, 2020 

Time: 7:00 P.M. 

Location: Virtual Meeting/County Commissioners Hearing Room, 400 High Street, Chestertown, Maryland 

Agenda Item/Case Sitting for the Board Action Taken Vote 

MINUTES: August 24, 2020 

#20-34 Melinda Zupon - Special 

Exception – Adaptive Reuse of a 

Historic Structure 

– The applicant is requesting a

special exception for the adaptive 

use of a historic structure to use the 

existing house as an accessory 

structure. 

The property is located at 4959 

Piney Neck Road and is zoned 
Community Residential “CR”. 

Applicant: 

Melinda Zupon 

Applicant was sworn in. 

Staff: 

Rob Tracey, Community Planner. 

William Mackey, Director 

No correspondence was received. 

John Massey, sitting in as 

Chairperson. 

Joan Horsey, Member 

David Hill, Alternate 

Member 

Mr. Christopher Drummond 

Attorney for the Board 

Brian Jones, Clerk 

Minutes approved as presented. 

Based on the applicant’s 

testimony: 

• The proposed use will not cause

a substantial determent to 

adjacent or neighboring 

properties. 

• The site will continue to be

accessed by the existing 

driveway. The project will not 

generate additional traffic to the 

area. 

• The proposed use does not

create an unacceptable impact by 

way of noise, odor, noxious 

materials, or other nuisances. 

• The proposal is consistent with

many comprehensive plan 

strategies preserving 

historic structures. 

• The applicant has outlined use

of the property which is specific 

and clearly defined which should 

not have a negative impact on 

property values. 

Ms. Horsey made a motion to  

grant the special exception  

conditioned upon site plan 

approval. 

Mr. Hill seconded the motion; all 

were in favor. 

Unanimous 

Approval 

Unanimous 

Approval 

Adjourn Mr. Hill made a motion to 

adjourn the meeting, and Ms. 

Horsey seconded the motion; the 

motion passed with all in favor. 

The meeting adjourned at 7:25 

P.M. 

Unanimous 

Approval 

Mr. John Massey, Meeting Chairman Brian Jones, Clerk 



Kent County Planning Commission 
Department of Planning, Housing, and Zoning  

400 High Street, Suite 130 
Chestertown, MD 21620 

410-778-7423 (voice/relay)  

 

 
March 10, 2021 
 
Dr. Al Townshend 
Kent County Board of Appeals 
400 High Street  
Chestertown, MD  21620 
 
RE:   #21-01:  Roseland, Inc. 
 Special Exception- Expansion of existing sand & gravel pit 
 
Dear Dr. Townshend: 
 
At its March 4, 2021, meeting, the Kent County Planning Commission reviewed the application submitted by 
Roseland, Inc., requesting a special exception for a five-acre expansion of an existing sand and gravel pit. The 
property is comprised of 152.93-acres located on Bradford Johnson Road, near Golts, in the First Election Dis trict. 
The parcel is zoned "AZD", Agricultural Zoning District, and is generally surrounded by farmland. The existing 
excavation site is comprised of 4.98-acres located near the southeastern corner of the property which is also otherwise 
farmed. The proposed five-acre expansion to the gravel pit would be directly south east of the existing pit.  
 
Following a review of all applicable laws and the Comprehensive Plan, the Planning Commission voted to send a 
favorable recommendation on the variance application with the following conditions:  
 

• The operation shall not be expanded beyond the proposed 5 acres. 

• The Applicant’s mining permit, sediment and erosion control plan, and operating and restoration plan must be 
strictly followed at all times. 
 

The Planning Commission based its recommendation on the following findings: 
 
▪ The Comprehensive Plan promotes the use of agricultural best management practices, and the proposal is 

consistent with the intent of the Land use Ordinance.  
▪ The mining operation offers reasonable protection to surrounding properties and the neighborhood. 
▪ The pit is approximately 175-feet from the property line.  
▪ Material is not brought from off-site for processing, mixing, or similar uses. 
▪ Farmlands will be restored through the State of Maryland reclamation process.  
▪ The operation is under an approved operating and restoration plan from the State of Maryland. 
▪ The operation does not disturb the minimum 100-foot buffer or stream protection corridor and water quality will 

not be negatively affected.  
 
Sincerely, 
Kent County Planning Commission 
 

Kim Kohl/rwt 

 
Kim Kohl 
Chairman 
 

 KK/rwt 



PRELIMINARY STAFF REPORT 
 

TO: Kent County Board of Appeals  
SUBJECT:  Roseland, Inc.  

 Special Exception – expansion of existing sand & gravel pit 
DATE: March 10, 2021 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL 

Roseland, Inc., requests a special exception for a five-acre expansion of an existing sand and gravel pit. 

The property is comprised of 152.93 acres located on Bradford Johnson Road near Golts in the First 
Election District. The existing excavation site comprises 4.98 acres located near the southeastern corner 
of the property which is also otherwise farmed. The proposed five-acre expansion to the gravel pit 

would be directly south east of the existing pit.  Access to the sand and gravel pit is by an existing gravel 
farm lane from Bradford Johnson Road that also serves a dwelling on a separate parcel.   

 
The parcel is zoned "AZD", Agricultural Zoning District, and is generally surrounded by farmland. The 
edge of the gravel pit is approximately 175-feet from the nearest property line. The Kent County 

Planning Commission met on March 4, 2021, and voted to send a favorable recommendation of this 
proposal. Their letter is included in your packet.  

 
HISTORY 

A two to three-acre gravel pit has existed on the site since 1954. On October 22, 1990, the Board of 

Appeals granted a conditional use for the operation of a four-acre gravel pit. Over the years, portions of 
the site have been reclaimed as the gravel has been excavated, and there has never been more than five 

acres being actively mined at one time. As required by the Zoning Ordinance, the special exception was 
renewed regularly through 2008. In 2013, Mr. Dixon, the original owner, indicated that he was going to 
discontinue mining the pit. In October 2008, the Board granted an expansion of the gravel pit with the 

following conditions:  
 

1. The stumps in the gravel pit shall be removed by November 30, 2008, a fact which shall be 
verified by the Kent County Office of Planning, Housing, and Zoning. 

2. That the special exception granted is for a period not to exceed five (5) years from the effective 

date of this decision. 
 

RELEVANT ISSUES 

I. SAND AND GRAVEL PIT SPECIAL EXCEPTION REVIEW CRITERIA 
 

A. Comprehensive Plan: "Sand and Gravel are the predominant minerals found in Kent County. 
An unusual seam of high-quality spec and concrete sand and gravel runs southeasterly from 

Baltimore County to Lewes Delaware. These aggregates area vital to a healthy economy and 
Kent County recognizes that sand and gravel are resources of increasing commercial value." 
Page 83 

 
B. Applicable Law: Article VII Section 7.52 of the Ordinance grants the Board of Appeals the 

authority to grant a special exception for gravel pits, excavation or extraction (not including the 
removal of sod, and excavation for foundations, swimming pools, soil and water conservation 
practices, and those removals approved in connection with farm use, street construction, 

subdivision or planned residential development) in AZD, RCD, RC, RR and CAR provided: 

a. The special exception shall be for a period not to exceed five years 

b. Material is not brought from off-site for processing, mixing, or similar uses 



Special Exception- Roseland, Inc 

Expansion of an existing sand and gravel pit 

Page 2 

c. The excavation or extraction operation shall be controlled to offer reasonable protection 
to surrounding properties and the neighborhood, particularly as regards to use of 

residential streets for access to the site 
d. There are no known threatened or endangered species, areas of specific value, or rare 

assemblages of species or other vital habitat at the site 
e. In RCD and CAR, highly erodible soils are not disturbed at the site 
f. The operation will not disturb for future use prime agricultural lands or forest and 

developed woodlands of more than one acre 
g. The operation will not degrade water quality 

h. The operation does not disturb the minimum 100-foot buffer or stream protection corridor 
i. The operation is under an approved operating and restoration plan from the State of 

Maryland 

j. The operation does not adversely affect a non-tidal wetland directly or hydrologically 
k. The location of the excavation or extraction with respect to property lines, the depth of 

excavation, and relation to the water table or flood criteria and the slope of the sides of 
the excavation shall be controlled to prevent a continuing, unsightly, hazardous, or 
wasteful condition of the land. 

 
C. Staff Comments:   

The proposal is consistent with the Mineral Resources element of the Comprehensive Plan. 
There are no known threatened or endangered species, areas of specific value, or other vital 
habitat in need of conservation on the site. The closest rare, threatened and endangered area is 

0.70 miles east of the property. The expansion of the gravel pit will not disturb the stream 
protection corridor and will be farther from the stream than previously mined areas. Although 

the area of the expansion is considered prime agricultural lands, previous approvals have 
granted approval to mine areas of prime farmland with the condition that the site be restored to 
an agricultural or forest use. The proposed gravel pit will not adversely affect a non-tidal 

wetland.  Sediment and erosion plans have been submitted for review.    

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff concurs with the Planning Commission recommendation.  



1 inch = 524 feet

K

Source: Kent County Department of Planning, Housing, and Zoning. 
Aerial taken Spring 2016. Map prepared February 2021.












	Roseland Additional Information.pdf
	PC_Packet_2021_03_04.pdf




